

City Council Study Session

Monday, March 18, at 6:00 PM

27400 Southfield Road, Lathrup Village, Michigan 48076

1. Call to Order by Mayor Garrett

2. Discussion Items

- A. Grant Writing Contractor
- B. Pet Store Sales
- C. Statutory Revenue Sharing Reform
- D. Oakland County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan
- E. Ferguson Water Meter Tower Installation
- F. Dispatch Contract
- G. Charge EV Charging Stations
- H. As-Needed Landscape Services
- I. Mid-Year Budget Amendments

3. Public Comments

4. Mayor and Council Comments

5. Adjourn

Addressing the City Council

- Your comments shall be made during times set aside for that purpose.
- Stand or raise a hand to indicate that you wish to speak.
- When recognized, state your name, and direct your comments and/or questions to any City official in attendance.
- Each person wishing to address the City Council and/or attending officials shall be afforded one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration during the first and last occasion for citizen comments and questions and one opportunity of up to three (3) minutes duration during each public hearing. Comments made during public hearings shall be relevant to the subject for which the public hearings are held.
- In addition to the opportunities described above, a citizen may respond to questions posed to him or her by the Mayor or members of the Council, provided members have been granted the floor to pose such questions.
- No speaker may make personal or impertinent attacks upon any officer, employee, or City Council member or other Elected Official, that is unrelated to the manner in which the officer, employee, or City Council member or other Elected Official, performs his or her duties.
- No person shall use abusive or threatening language toward any individual when addressing the City Council.
- Any person who violates this section shall be directed by the Mayor to be orderly and silent. If a person addressing the Council refuses to become silent when so directed, such person may be deemed by the Mayor to have committed a "breach of the peace" by disrupting and impeding the orderly conduct of the public meeting of the City Council and may be ordered by the Mayor to leave the meeting. If the person refuses to leave as directed, the Mayor may direct any law enforcement officer who is present to escort the violator from the meeting.



City of Lathrup Village

27400 Southfield Road Lathrup Village, MI 48076 www.lathrupvillage.org | (248) 557-2600

TO: Mayor & City Council

FROM: Mike Greene – City Administrator

DATE: March 18, 2024 RE: Study Session

Grant Writing Contractor

The Police Department has been exploring contracting with a Grant Writing company to oversee some of their grant writing throughout the year. They have been in contact with Lexipol, who provides this service with different tiers to select from. While Lexipol has an emphasis on public safety, they do have experience in other aspects of local government as well. Due to the size of our organization, the entire City would qualify under their Grant Assistance Program. The purpose of this item is to discuss this type of opportunity and gauge the Council's interest.

Pet Store Sales

This is a continuation of the discussion that began at the previous study session. The purpose is to gauge the Council's interest in establishing an ordinance that prohibits the sale of specific animals via retail stores.

Remaining Items

The additional discussion items included in your study session agenda are items that are part of the regular Council Meeting. The purpose of these items is to answer initial questions you may have regarding these topics before any formal decision is rendered.

Are You Getting Your Share of Grant Funds?

More than \$700 billion in grants is available to local government each year. But it can be difficult to navigate through the grant process. Few municipalities have grants experts on staff, or the time to research opportunities and develop grant applications.

Lexipol's pre-award grant services provide customized solutions enabling applicants to tap into federal, state and private grants. With our team of expert grants writers, researchers and project managers, you'll craft the best grant application possible, helping you obtain the funding you need for essential equipment, personnel and consulting services.

Let Us Help You Get Funded

Lexipol's unique grant solutions include:

- GrantFinder real-time, online grant research tool
- Grant Writing Services personalized consulting and narrative development
- Grant Assistance Program a complete package to support all your grant needs throughout the year

2.5X SUCCESS RATE

Customers who use Lexipol grant services have a 40% success rate in getting funded, compared with the national average of just 17%.

With Lexipol grant services, you'll:



Identify grants most appropriate for your agency



Save time with personalized grant alerts



Gain expert insight and assistance from seasoned grant experts



Stand out in the highly competitive grants process

Our team of expert grant writers, researchers and project managers is invested in helping your city. Let us build a custom grants solution for you!



GRANT SERVICES

GrantFinder: Grant Research Made Easy

GrantFinder provides a real-time, online database of more than 15,000 federal, state, corporate and foundation grants. More than 5,000 municipal organizations trust GrantFinder to locate grants relevant to them. Powerful features include:

- Customized grant alerts for your preferred grant categories
- Interactive calendar to see upcoming grant deadlines
- Personalized dashboard and application tracking tools
- Hundreds of grants updated and added daily

Pricing: As low as \$1,495 per year!

Grant Writing Services: Partner With Our Experts

Complete Grant Application Services

- Identification of federal, state and private grants eligible to fund your project
- Data collected via online worksheet for your specific grant project
- Unlimited personalized grant consulting from senior grant consultants
- Development of the narrative sections of your targeted grant
- Unlimited reviews of your grant application by a grant expert
- Assembly of all application elements
- Data entry of your application

Pricing: \$6,000

Grant Assistance Program: Your Strategic Partner

If your agency is pursuing multiple grant projects—large or small—consider our Grant Assistance Program. This retainer service combines all our pre-award grant services, including grant research, alerts, consulting and review:

- At least 3 user subscriptions to GrantFinder research tool
- At least 1 Grant Writing Service per year
- Up to 6 per year application and narrative reviews by our team of experts
- Dedicated account management support team
- Annual strategic planning session with grant consultants

Pricing: Starting at \$7,500 per year!

ORDINANCE NO. ____-24

CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE CODE OF ORDINANCES BY ADDITION OF, CHAPTER 10 - ANIMALS, ARTICLE IV. PET ACQUISITION

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHRUP VILLAGE ORDAINS:

That Chapter 10 Animals, Article IV. Sections 10-161 through 10-199 are hereby added as follows:

Chapter 10 - ANIMALS

ARTICLE IV. - PET ACQUISITION

Sec. 10-161. - Short Title

This chapter shall be known and cited as the Pet Acquisition Ordinance of the City of Lathrup Village and will so be referred to within this chapter.

Sec. 10-162. - Definitions.

As used in this chapter unless the context requires a different meaning, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning ascribed by this section:

Animal control shelter means a facility operated by or under contract with a state, county, or a municipality for the impoundment and care of animals that are delivered to the facility, found, recovered, or at large, or otherwise held, due to violations of a municipal ordinance, state law, or which otherwise are surrendered.

Animal protection shelter means the facility operated by a person, humane society, a society for the prevention of cruelty to animals, or another non-profit organization for care of homeless animals.

Animal rescue organization means any not-for-profit organization which has taxexempt status under Section 501(c)(3) of the United States Internal Revenue Code, whose Mission and practice is, in whole or in significant part, the rescue and placement of animals in permanent homes.

Cat means an animal of the species of domestic cat, Felis catus.

Certificate of origin means a document requiring the source of the animal sold or transferred by the retail seller. The certificate shall include the name, premise address, phone number and email address, if available, of the source of the animal.

Dog means an animal of the species of domestic dog, Canis lupus familiaris.

Ferret means a domesticated animal of any age of the species mustela furo.

Large reptiles means the members of the class reptilian including, but not limited to monitor lizards, alligators, pythons, boa constrictors, venomous reptiles and constrictor snakes that grow to more than seventy-two (72) inches long.

Long lived birds means any bird whose life expectancy is expected to exceed twenty-five (25) years, including but not limited to cockatoos, macaws, and amazons.

Offsite retail sale means the exchange of consideration for an animal regardless of the age of the animal at a location other than where the animal was bred.

Pet store means a place where animals are sold or offered for sale, including retail sale or other sale, exchanged or transferred.

Pet store operator means a person who has an ownership interest in or operates a pet store or both.

Rabbit means a long eared, short tailed lagomorph mammal with long hind legs of the leporidae family.

Retail sale means an offer for sale, offer for adoption, barter, auction, giving away, display for commercial purposes or otherwise transfer of any animal that is not bred on the premises.

Zoological park means any facility other than a pet shop or kennel displaying or exhibiting one (1) or more species of non-domesticated animals operated by a person, partnership, corporation or any other business entity or government agency and accredited by the Association of Zoos and Aquariums.

Sec. 10-163. - Prohibitions.

- (a) No pet store shall sell, offer for retail sale, or sale, offer for adoption, trade, barter, auction, give away, deliver, or otherwise dispose of or transfer dogs, cats, ferrets, rabbits, long lived birds, or large reptiles.
- (b) No person or entity shall offer for retail sale, offer for adoption, trade, barter, auction, give away or otherwise transfer dogs, cats, ferrets, rabbits, long lived birds, or large reptiles on a roadside, public right-of-way, commercial parking lot or sidewalk, outdoor special sale, swap meet, flea market, or other similar event or location.
- (c) No person or business entity shall hold off-site retail sales of animals in a location other than where the animal was bred.
- (d) A pet store shall not sell or transfer any live animal without providing disclosure through a certificate of origin prior to the sale or transfer.
- (e) No person shall knowingly provide or present an inaccurate certificate of origin.

Section 10-164. – Exemptions.

This article does not apply to:

(1) A person or business entity that sells, offers for sale, offers for adoption, trades, barters, gives away, delivers or otherwise transfers or disposes of dogs, cats, ferrets, rabbits, long lived birds or large reptiles that were bred and reared on the premises of the person or business entity.

- (2) A publicly operated animal control shelter, animal protection shelter, or zoological park.
- (3) A private, charitable, non-profit humane society or animal rescue organization.
- (4) A publicly operated animal control agency, non-profit humane society, or non-profit animal rescue organization that operates out of or in connection with a pet store.

Section 10-165. - Existing pet store.

An existing pet store may continue to display, offer for sale, offer for adoption, barter, auction, give away or otherwise transfer dogs, cats, ferrets, rabbits, large lived birds, or large reptiles for a period of one year from the date of adoption of the ordinance from which this article is derived.

Any pet store or pet operator that displayed, sold, delivered, offered for sale, offered for adoption, bartered, auctioned, gave away or otherwise transferred live animals as the principal business of such facility on the effective date of the ordinance from which this article is derived and complied with all applicable provisions of the Fraser Code of Ordinances and state law.

Section 10-166. - Adoption of shelter and rescue animals

Nothing in this article shall prevent a pet store or its owner operator, or employees from providing space and appropriate care for animals owned by an animal control shelter, animal protection shelter, non-profit humane society or non-profit animal rescue agency and maintained at the pet store for the purpose of adopting those animals by the public.

Section 10-167. - Penalties.

Any person, corporation, or other entity that violates this chapter shall be responsible for a civil infraction, punishable by a fine up to \$500.00 per violation. Each day shall constitute a separate and distinct violation.

Secs. 10-168—10-199. - Reserved.

PART IV. SEVERABILITY.

If any section, subsection, clause, phrase, or portion of this article is for any reason held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate and distinct provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions.

PART V. SAVINGS.

All proceedings pending and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired, or incurred at the time this ordinance takes effect are saved and may be consummated according to the law in force where they commenced.

PART VI. EFFECTIVE DATE.

This Ordinance shall be published in the manner required by law and shall become effective ten (10) days after the date of its publication. A copy of the ordinance shall also be made available for public use and inspection in the office of the City Clerk.

LAGE, OAKLAND COUNT	 , City Clerk	
Date of Introduction: Date of Adoption: Date of Publication of Notice of Adoption:		

STANDING RESOLUTION NO. 24-____

COUNCIL RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE

The Lathrup Village City Council meeting is dedicated to the premise that government has a responsibility to the residents of the City and to the media to conduct a well-organized and objective meeting and an obligation to keep them informed. Council meetings should be attractive, interesting and understandable to all in attendance with as much opportunity for audience participation as is possible. Accordingly, the following Rules of Order and Procedure are adopted:

1. Definitions

- A. "Breach of the peace," shall mean seriously disruptive conduct involving abusive, disorderly, dangerous, aggressive, or provocative speech and behaviors tending to threaten or incite violence. "Breach of the peace" goes well beyond behavior acceptable in a civil society and is the only basis to eject, exclude or prevent a participant from attending all or part of a public body meeting.
- B. "Meetings" shall mean all regular meetings, study sessions and all other public hearings of Lathrup Village "public bodies," as defined under the Open Meetings Act, MCL 15.261 et seq. (OMA), including the Lathrup Village City Council.
- C. "Participant" shall mean any person attending and/or addressing the public body at a meeting during public comment but does not include elected public officials.
- D. "Public comment" shall mean the audience communication period(s) prescribed in this ordinance or the approved by way of agenda of a meeting that is intended for members of the public to address a Lathrup Village public body in compliance with the OMA. MCL 15.263(5).
- E. "Out of order," shall mean verbal and/or nonverbal conduct by a participant disrupts the orderly administration of a meeting including but not limited to the interruption of the efficient Order of Business, violation of state or local ordinance at a meeting, use of profanity, shouting, verbal threats of physical violence, or other acts of indecorum.

2. Regular Council Meetings

The Council shall set a regular schedule for its meeting dates (February through January of the following year) as a part of the agenda at its organizational meeting (first meeting in January). The place and time of the meeting shall be decided by the Mayor and shall be included in the agenda calling for the meeting.

3. Special Meetings

According to Section 6.2 of the Charter, special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, the City Administrator or any two members of the Council on at least 24 hours written notice to each member of the Council, e-mail notice is sufficient; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing.

The City Clerk will also make a diligent effort to notify each member of the Council in person of each special session. At such a meeting only the matters in the notice shall be acted upon.

4. Recessed Meetings

Any session of the Council may be continued to another day, but no such continuation shall be for a longer period than until the next regular meeting thereafter.

5. Study Meetings

A study meeting may be convened on call by the Mayor or by two or more members of the Council. All members of the Council must be notified of the time and place of the meeting as in Rule # 2. Attendance at study meetings and notices calling such meetings shall be in harmony with the provisions of the Michigan Open Meetings Act.

The call for the meeting may also invite such people as may be required for consultation and advice with respect to the matters under discussion. At a study meeting no formal votes may be taken on any matter under discussion nor shall any Council members enter into a commitment with another respecting a vote to be taken subsequently at a public meeting of the Council. All study meetings shall be called by the Mayor at regular Council meetings. A brief confirmation of the time and date may be held at the meeting and all study meetings will be attempted to be held on Monday nights between regular Council dates.

6. Council Meeting Agenda

The agenda for all council and study meetings shall be prepared by the Mayor and/or Mayor Pro-Tem with the assistance of the City Administrator. The City Clerk shall furnish a copy to each member of the Council, the City Administrator, the City Attorney, and all other citizens who are involved in the meeting such as the Chairperson of Advisory Committees or other functions, on the Friday evening of the week preceding the meeting. All reports, communications, ordi-nances, resolutions, contract documents or other materials to be submitted to the Council shall be delivered to the members of the Council, the City Administrator and the City Attorney by the City Clerk as early as possible but no later than Friday evening.

7. Official Reports

Page | 2

Wherever possible, reports by the City Administrator, City Attorney, Police Department, City Clerk, Advisory Boards and Committees will be made in writing to the Council, submitted prior to the meeting and listed on the agenda. Under such procedure, discussion at an open council meeting will be limited to general questions from the audience or the Council on the subject matter of these reports. Concluding action may be taken at this time. Items re-quiring action by request of the City Administrator or City Attorney will be listed as regular agenda items and, unless conditions make it impossible, will be submitted to members of the Council with the agenda for the meeting. Copies of other reports will be distributed to the Council for their infor-mation.

8. Correspondence

The City Administrator and the Mayor are delegated the responsibility of handling all correspondence. Under this system only those correspondence which necessarily requires Council decision on policy will be brought before the council meeting. Copies of other correspondence may be distributed to the Council for their information.

Correspondence received by all Council Members via e-mail which require council decision on Policy shall be acknowledged and responded to by the Mayor within a reasonable time frame; the correspondence shall then be transmitted to the City Administrator for inclusion on the agenda of the next regular meeting.

Correspondence received by individual Council Members via e-mail which require council decision on Policy shall be forwarded to the Mayor for acknowledgement and response within a reasonable time frame; the correspondence shall then be transmitted to the City Administrator for inclusion on the agenda of the next regular meeting.

Correspondence received by all Council Members via e-mail which does not require council decision on Policy shall be acknowledged and responded to by the Mayor within a reasonable time frame; the correspondence shall then be transmitted to the City Administrator for follow-up and if necessary, action.

Correspondence received by individual Council Members via e-mail which does not require council decision on Policy shall be acknowledged and responded to within a reasonable time frame; the correspondence shall then be transmitted to the City Administrator for follow-up and if necessary, action.

9. Attendance at Conferences

The selection of the City's representative at conferences and meetings with outside organizations and officials, where official designation is required, is delegated to the Mayor, with concurrence of Council if substantial expense is involved.

10. Presiding Officer

The Mayor shall take the chair at the time appointed for the Council to meet and call the members to order. The Role will be noted by the Mayor and recorded by the Clerk for the minutes. The Mayor Pro-tem shall take the chair as presiding officer in the absence of the Mayor.

11. Temporary Chairperson

In case of absence of the Mayor and Mayor Pro-tem, the Clerk shall call the Council to order and call the roll. If a quorum is found to be present, the Clerk shall appoint a Chairperson to act until the Mayor or Mayor Pro-Tem appears.

12. Council Privileges

The presiding officer may move, second, and debate from the chair, subject only to such limitations on debate as are by these rules imposed on all members and shall not be deprived of any of the rights and privileges of a Council member by reason of his/her acting as the presiding officer.

13. Decorum and Order

Meetings are to be formal with the enforcement of stringent rules for debate which will control the expenditure of valuable time. The presiding officer shall preserve decorum and decide all questions of order, subject to formal appeal to the Council as a whole.

Every person desiring to speak shall address the chair and shall wait to be recognized by the chair. They shall then confine himself/herself to the question under debate. Every Council member desiring to question the administrative staff shall address their questions to the City Administrator, who may either answer the inquiries or designate some member of staff for that purpose. A Council member, once recognized, shall not be interrupted while speaking unless a point of order is raised.

14. Quorum

The majority of the Council members elected shall constitute a quorum. In the case that a lesser number than a quorum shall convene at a regular or special meeting, the majority of the members present may send for any or all absent members by agreement. In the event a quorum cannot be obtained, the meeting must be adjourned. It is the duty of each Council member to notify the Mayor or Administrator if he/she cannot attend any Council meeting a minimum of 2 hours prior to the start of the meeting. A Council member who has provided timely notice shall be excused from attendance. A Council member that fails to provide timely notice of absence may, at the next regular meeting, present an explanation of absence and if warranted may have their absence excused.

15. City Administrator

The City Administrator shall attend all meetings of the Council unless excused by the Mayor. He/she shall keep the Council fully advised as to the needs of the City and make recommendations to the Council; they may take part in discussions on all matters concerning the welfare of the City and shall have a seat but no vote in the Council meetings.

16. City Clerk

The City Clerk shall be the Clerk for the City Council and shall attend all regular and special Council meetings unless excused by the Administrator, wherein the Administrator shall provide for the recording of minutes. The Clerk shall be responsible for keeping the minutes of the meetings and shall perform such other duties in the meeting as may be in order. Within one week after the meeting, the Clerk shall make available upon request a copy of the minutes of the preceding meeting. Each member shall be furnished a copy of the preceding meeting minutes no later than the next regular meeting.

17. <u>City Attorney</u>

The City Attorney shall attend all regular and special meetings of the Council unless excused by the Mayor. Any member of the Council may at any time call upon the City Attorney for an oral or written opinion concerning routine questions of law with respect to the City which do not require extensive research.

18. Right of Appeal

Any Council member may appeal to the full Council from a ruling of the Presiding Officer. If the appeal is seconded, the Presiding Officer shall immediately put the question of sustaining the decision of the chair to a vote.

19. Voting

Every Council member present when an ordinance or resolution is put to a vote shall vote, whether "yes" or "no", on a question during roll call. The only exception to this requirement for voting shall be in the case of a con-flict of interest which shall preclude a Council member from voting.

20. Personal Privilege

The right of a Council member to address the Council on a question of personal privilege in cases where his integrity or motives are questioned, shall be given preference over other discussions. Any member shall have the right to express dissent against any ordinance or resolution of the Council and have the reason

therefore entered upon the official minutes, and whenever possible shall present to the City Clerk his expression in written form for the official records.

21. Code of Ethics

City Council members occupy positions of public trust. All business transactions of such officials dealing in any manner with public funds, either directly or indirectly, must be subject to the scrutiny of public opinion both as to the legality and to the propriety of such transactions. Council members shall not have a pecuniary interest either directly or indirectly in contracts of any character with the City, unless fully and publicly disclosed to the full Council and handled in accordance with proper legal procedures.

Council members shall conduct themselves so as to bring credit upon the City as a whole and so as to set an example of good ethical conduct for all citizens of the community. Council members shall always bear in mind their responsibility to the entire electorate, shall refrain from actions benefiting special interest groups at the expense of the City as a whole, and shall do everything in their power to ensure equal and impartial law enforcement throughout the City at large.

Council members shall conduct themselves in accordance with City Charter and all ordinances of the City.

22. Order of Business

The business of all regular meetings of the Council shall be generally transacted in the following order at the discretion of the Mayor:

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Roll Call of Council
- 3. Pledge of Allegiance
- 4. Approval of Agenda
- 5. Presentations
- 6. Public Comment for Agenda Items
- 7. Consent Agenda
 - a. Approval of Minutes
 - b. Approval of Disbursement Reports
 - c. Acceptance of Departmental Reports
 - d. Routine and non-controversial action request
- 8. Petitions
- 9. Public Hearings
- 10. Action Request
- 11. City Administrator's Report
- 12. City Attorney's Report
- 13. Reports of Boards, Commissions and Committees

- 14. New Business
- 15. Old Business
- 16. Correspondence
- 17. Public Comment
- 18. Mayor and Council Comments
- 19. Adjournment

23. Parliamentary Procedure

The conduct of Council meetings shall be in accordance with the manual on parliamentary procedures entitled "Roberts Rules of Order".

24. Permission to Address Public Body / Public Comment Procedure

The following rules shall govern public comment during public meeting of a Lathrup Village public body:

- A. Public comment shall be allowed by the Chairperson one participant at a time.
- B. Participants shall not speak until they are recognized by the Chairperson.
- C. Each participant recognized by the Chairperson to address the public body shall identify himself/herself by name and, if appropriate, group affiliation for purposes of recordation in the meeting minutes.
- D. A participant addressing the public body shall be limited to three (3) minutes
- E. The Chairperson or public body member may, in the discretion of the Chairperson, be allowed to respond to participant questions posed, but the overall time limit of 3 minutes shall continue to run against the participant's allotted time.
- F. The Chairperson shall designate a timekeeper for purposes of enforcing the time limit.
- G. There shall be public comment, as approved in the meeting agenda, wherein participants may address the public body on any new business (non-agenda items) items.
- H. Participants addressing the public body shall make responsible comments and shall refrain from making redundant, personal, impertinent, slanderous, or profane remarks.

- I. Any participant who is "out of order" may be interrupted and gaveled "out or order" by the Chairperson with the end to maintain order and decorum of the meeting in the Chairperson's discretion.
- J. A participant making public comment who is ruled "out of order" by the Chairperson:
 - a. May be admonished by the Chairperson and instructed to refrain from the indecorum, disruptive or other prohibited conduct.
 - b. Shall be allowed to continue his or her public comment within the time limits prescribed only if it is in conformity with the Chairperson's instruction.
 - c. Shall be allowed to continue his or her public comment to the extent that it is within the approved time limit, with allowance for time lapsed by the Chairperson's "out of order" ruling(s), or other public body members' discussion/commentary.
 - d. Without limiting the discretion of the Chairperson, if an "out of order" participant repeatedly violates the ruling(s) by the Chairperson three (3) or more times, the Chairperson may instruct the participant that his or her public comment is concluded and instruct him/her to withdraw from addressing the public body, vacate the lectern, and return to their seat or other position in the audience at the meeting, or may exercise other lawful measures to restore decorum and maintain order.
 - e. The Chairperson may recess the meeting until such time as order and decorum is restored and shall allow the participant time to comply with the Chairperson's instruction(s).
 - f. During any recess called to restore order the Chairperson may summon law enforcement officers to monitor the public meeting, if not already provided.
 - g. Any "out of order" participant shall not be ordered to be removed or excluded from the meeting unless he/she is in "breach of the peace" or inciting a "breach of the peace" at that meeting.
- K. A participant who is found to be "out of order," shall be given a reasonable period of time to comply with the Chairperson's directives.
- L. A participant who is found to be "out of order," ordered to cease public comment, suffer removal from the meeting for "breach of the peace," or otherwise have his/her public comment limited or restricted, except as to the expiration of time limit, shall be allowed upon his/her request to appeal the Chairperson's ruling to the other public body members present and this appeal shall be decided by a roll call vote.
- M. No person shall be ejected, removed, or excluded from attending any part of a meeting unless he/she is causing a "breach of the peace" at that meeting.

N. Nothing in this policy shall be construed as creating a cause of action by a participant against the City of Lathrup Village, its public officers, law enforcement officers, or any other City of Lathrup public officials.

25. Video/Audio recording during a public meeting

Attendees shall be permitted to make video and sound recordings of a public meeting and to broadcast live. The following rules shall govern the video and sound recording during public meeting of a Lathrup Village public body in order to minimize disrupting the meeting:

- A. Recording devices must operate without additional artificial light (no flash photography).
- B. Individuals must remain seated and stationary while recording.
- C. Individuals are prohibited from intentionally placing a recording device within close proximity to another attendee without their consent. This includes positioning the recording device in a manner that invades the personal space of the other attendee or obstructs their view.
- D. Individuals shall not utilize a recording device to intentionally frighten, intimidate, threaten, harass, or annoy any other person or to disturb an open meeting of a public body.

26. State or Federal Cooperation - Procedure

All proposals for projects which contemplate cooperation with, or financial participation by, the State or Federal government, shall be transmitted to Council by the City Administrator. If a City Board or Commission desires to propose such a project, the proposal shall first be filed with the City Administrator. All proposals shall be in approved form and accompanied by proper plans and specifications conforming to the requirements of respective State or Federal governments. If the Council approves the proposal, it shall by resolution authorize the City Administrator to make an application to the proper authority.

27. Suspension of Rules

Any provisions of these rules not governed by the Charter or Code may be temporarily suspended at any meeting of the Council by the Presiding Officer unless objected to by any Council member. Such objection must then be sustained by majority vote of the Council.

The vote on any such suspension shall be taken by "yeas" and "nays" and entered upon the records.

28. To Amend Rules

These rules may be amended, or new rules adopted by a majority vote of all members of the Council. Any such alterations of or amendments to, shall be submitted in writing at the preceding regular meeting and shall be placed on the calendar under the order of new business. This requirement shall be waived only by unanimous consent, with a recorded vote of all members.

Adopted Replaces CO 79-7122, CO 80-62, CO 82-273a, 85-117a, 22-